
Administrative Offices 
4600 So. Weber River Drive 

Riverdale, Utah  84405 

 
 
 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Council held Tuesday, June 19, 2007 at 6:00 
p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber River Drive.      
 
Members Present: Bruce Burrows, Mayor  
   David Gibby, Councilor 
   Stacey Haws, Councilor 

Gary Griffiths, Councilor 
Shelly Jenkins, Councilor 
 

Excused:  Doug Peterson, Councilor 
 
Others Present: Larry Hansen, Chief Administrative Officer; Steve Brooks, City Attorney; Lynn 

Moulding, Public Works Director; Randy Daily, Community Development Director; 
Lynn Fortie, Business Administrator; James Ebert, Police Department; Marilyn 
Hansen, City Recorder; other city staff and approximately 8 citizens. 

 
A. Welcome & Roll Call  
Mayor Burrows called the meeting to order and welcomed all those present.   
 
B.  Pledge of Allegiance 
Councilor Haws offered the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mayor Burrows read a quote from Franklin Pierce. 
 
C. Moment of Silence 
Mayor Burrow’s quote was followed by a Moment of Silence. 
 
D. Open Communications
Nancy Brough distributed and read a letter expressing her concerns on the Developer’s Agreement with 
Unity Enterprises. 
 
E. Presentations and Reports   
1. Mayor’s Report 
None 
 
2. Administrator’s Report 
 a. Department Information 

Larry Hansen discussed the report.   
 
 b. Employee Recognition 

Larry Hansen recognized the following employees whose anniversary date falls in the month of 
June.  
 

 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 1 June 19, 2007 

Employee Length of Service Department 
Jeff Woody 15 years Community Development 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 2 June 19, 2007 

David Ermer 11 years Fire  
 

 c. Staffing Authorization Plan 
Mr. Hansen discussed the report and noted that the city is still operating under authorization.   
 

4. Recorder’s Report (Review status of Council requested follow-up items) 
None  
 

F. Consent Items 
1. Approval of meeting minutes from:  

June 5, 2007 Council Work Session 
June 5, 2007 Regular City Council 
 

2. Consideration of canceling the July 3, 2007 City Council meeting. 

3. Report on the Condition of the Treasury for the month ending May 31, 2007. 
Lynn Fortie reported that the general fund received the RAMP grants in the amount of $102,534 and 
Class C road funds of $38,000.  Expenditures included $5,300 for the golf tournament; $9,300 for a 
color copier; $5,500 to repair a fire engine; $5,000 to Roto Rooter and $8,500 from the motor pool 
for a backhoe.  Councilor Haws inquired if the grants go into the general fund.  Mr. Fortie replied 
that they can, but sometimes they go into the Capital Projects fund.   
 
Motion:  Councilor Gibby moved to approve the consent items including the cancellation of the 

July 3, 2007 City Council Meeting.  Councilor Jenkins seconded the motion.   
 
Call the Question  
The motion passed unanimously.  

 
G. Action Items 
1. Consideration of Resolution 2007-22 adopting changes to HR Policy for Use of City Vehicles, 

Education Assistance, and Travel Time Compensation. 
Stacey Comeau stated that all three of these policies have been submitted to provide clarification 
and/or consistency throughout the departments in the City.  She explained that the Use of City 
Vehicles had been previously adopted as a resolution and now felt it was necessary to put it into the 
Policy and Procedure manual.  She noted that the Education Assistance change had been discussed 
previously and entails changing the tuition reimbursement rate from 100% to 50% and eliminating 
paying for graduate degrees.  Ms. Comeau stated that the Travel Time Compensation policy is a new 
policy. 

 
Councilor Jenkins inquired about the requirement in the Education Assistance policy stating that the 
institution had to be a not-for profit institution and remembered that there had been quite a lot of 
discussion on that point.  Mayor Burrows stated that it had to be a regular institution.  Councilor 
Jenkins stated that they discussed if the University of Phoenix would be included.   Mr. Hansen 
replied that institution was ruled out.  Councilor Haws discussed the Travel Time Compensation 
policy and stated that most of their trips seem to be to St. George and that he looked at the cost to fly 
to St. George versus driving and the costs are similar.  He wondered how this would affect this 
policy.  Ms. Comeau reported that the Travel and Training policy discusses using the cheapest mode 
of transportation.  Mr. Hansen noted that the cost of ground transportation would need to be added to 
the cost of flying and that may end up being more expensive than driving.    



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 3 June 19, 2007 

Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve Resolution 2007-22 adopting amendments to the 
Riverdale City Personnel Policies and Procedures Handbook.   Councilor Haws seconded 
the motion. 

 
Call the Question  
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor 
Jenkins, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously.  

 
2. Consideration of Resolution 2007-23 amending FY2007 operating budget. 

Lynn Fortie reported that the amendments log now contains the surplus transfer, as recommended by 
the auditors.  Larry Hansen stated that the transfer amount also includes the $102,000 RAMP monies 
that were received in FY07.   

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve Resolution 2007-23 amending the budget for the 

City of Riverdale for Fiscal Year 2007 (July 1, 2006 – June 30, 2007).  Councilor 
Griffiths seconded the motion. 

 
Call the Question  
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor 
Jenkins, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

3. Consideration of Resolution 2007-24 amending Title 1-12, Consolidated Fee Schedule. 
Lynn Fortie reported that the only change to the Consolidated Fee Schedule, from the Strategic 
Planning worksession, is the fee being charged for the first garbage can.  Councilor Haws inquired as 
to how much revenue will be generated by changing the home occupation license fee from a split fee 
to a flat fee and including the addition of the fire inspection charge.  He wondered if the change was 
made because of difficulties in trying to determine if the business is over or under the $5,000 
threshold.  Randy Daily reported that an applicant is on the honor system and they don’t have to 
show proof to determine if their business makes over or less than $5,000 per year.  He stated that the 
feeling was to have one $30 fee, because most home businesses aren’t a nuisance and if the fire 
department has to do an inspection there will be an additional $20 charge, but most people will just 
pay the flat $30 fee.  Councilor Jenkins stated that she has a home occupation business and is in 
favor of leaving the fee structure as it is.  Mr. Daily reported that verification is the problem and that 
very few applicants pay the $50 license fee. 
 
Councilor Haws inquired about the $17 fee for rental units and asked if there was a fee for residential 
rentals previously.  Mr. Daily replied that there wasn’t.  Councilor Haws inquired if this would 
require everyone who has a duplex or rents out a house in Riverdale to get a business license and pay 
a per unit fee for those rental units.  Mr. Daily replied that it if the property is used commercially, 
they would need to get a business license and pay the fee.  Councilor Haws asked if this will also 
apply to apartment complexes.  Mr. Daily replied that it would.  Councilor Gibby inquired if the 
surrounding communities assess the $17 per unit fee.  Mr. Daily replied that he believes this fee is 
low compared to other communities.  He stated that Ogden City bases their fee on the amount of 
increased City services required for the operation of an apartment complex.  Larry Hansen stated that 
there are some programs such as the Good Landlord Program and that our public safety department 
has asked us to incorporate crime free housing where we can.  He stated that Ogden City uses the 
Good Landlord Program and charges higher fees to those who don’t participate in this program than 
to those who do.  Lt. James Ebert reported that the Good Landlord Program and the Crime Free 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 4 June 19, 2007 

Housing program are the same.  They both require background checks of the renters and the 
landlords must attend training in order to receive the reduced fees.   Councilor Haws inquired as to 
when these fees will be implemented.  Mr. Hansen stated they will get a letter letting them know 
about the fee change and they will be reflected on their 2008 business license renewal application.   

 
Councilor Haws inquired about changing the fee for Peddler/Solicitors to a per person fee and asked 
if the kids selling magazines and cleaning products will be required to pay the $50 fee.  Mr. Daily 
replied that each individual who wishes to sell door to door will need a business license.  He 
explained that currently, a company only pays $45 for any number of solicitors, and we are 
recommending changing the fee to require a company to pay $50 per solicitor to help keep better 
track of who is selling in the City.  Councilor Gibby inquired how this change could affect 
fundraising for local schools.  Mr. Daily replied that there is non-profit consideration and that the 
City Council can approve that they don’t need to be licensed.  City Attorney Steve Brooks, reported 
that there was some litigation regarding door to door solicitation and that the Utah League of Cities 
and Towns put out a sample ordinance to deal with this issue.  He stated that he will be bringing 
language before the Council that will clarify door to door soliciting and policies in the future.   

 
Councilor Haws discussed the per chair charge for beauty shops and asked if this was to raise 
revenue and how other cities handle them.  Mr. Daily replied that other cities were looked at and that 
some beauty salons require the beauticians to get their own business license.  Councilor Haws 
inquired if an establishment like Supercuts would have to have a business license for each chair.  Mr. 
Daily replied that with the proposed changes they would be charged a $55 base fee and then $11 per 
chair.  

 
Councilor Haws discussed the fee change for food establishment from $2/seat to $5/seat.  Councilor 
Jenkins asked if a survey was done for this fee.  Mr. Daily replied that they did a survey on what 
other cities charge seat chair and felt that this fee needed to be raised.   

 
Councilor Haws stated that he has a problem with doubling the animal fees.  Lt. James Ebert 
reported that the only fee that doubled was for unaltered animals as they have an issue on the amount 
spent at the shelter.  He stated that they have talked to the Humane Society and the only thing the 
City can do is to look at the animal population.  He explained that our fees are competitive and lower 
than surrounding cities, and the concept is to affect the animal population.  Councilor Haws 
discussed his concern of raising the fee from $8 to $25 for the over age 55 residents.  Lt. Ebert 
reported that the City has a serious problem with the animal population and it is mostly from wild 
cats and animals that have been turned out.  Mr. Hansen stated that if a senior over 55 goes to the 
bother to get the animal altered, they can buy a lifetime license for $25.  Councilor Haws inquired if 
we have a license requirement for cats.  Mr. Hansen replied that there is currently no license 
requirement for cats.  Councilor Haws asked that a proposal for cats be brought back before the 
Council as quickly as possible.   Councilor Gibby suggested making the fee apply to unaltered cats 
only.  Councilor Jenkins stated it appears that feral cats are the biggest problem and they generally 
don’t have an owner, and feels that if they are going to consider a cat license it would be reasonable 
to consider both altered and unaltered cats.  

 
Councilor Jenkins inquired if a PRUD is a conditional use and how much a PRUD application would 
be.  Mr. Daily replied that a PRUD request requires a public hearing and is handled like a rezone.  
He stated that the fee would include the $500 PRUD fee and the $50 Conditional Use Permit Fee.  

 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 5 June 19, 2007 

Councilor Haws stated that he would like to keep the sewer fee at $7.75 and not implement the 
recommended increase to $8.50.  Lynn Moulding asked if that was just for the residential sewer fees.  
Councilor Haws replied yes.  He stated that they are running a $50,000 surplus in that fund and if 
they didn’t raise sewer fees this year and waited until next year, there wouldn’t be a significant 
change in revenue.  He proposed that they don’t change the sewer rates this year but prepare to have 
the change come into effect next year.  Mr. Hansen stated that from a fiscal perspective his 
assessment is right and they are going to be ok this year, and that they don’t have the uncertainties in 
the sewer budget that they have in the water budget.  He reported that Central Weber Sewer has 
implemented an 800% increase in hook up fees for new customers.  Mayor Burrows reported that the 
monthly fee will be increasing as well and that the City would run a deficit if they do what Councilor 
Haws is proposing.  Councilor Gibby asked Mr. Moulding if the current fund balances would cover 
the existing maintenance needs.  Mr. Moulding replied that is difficult to say because costs are 
doubling for bids and he doesn’t know when it will end.  Councilor Griffiths asked if keeping the 
sewer fee the same would be setting them up for a shortfall.  Mr. Moulding replied that it is a 
challenge to know how much to keep in reserve, but that he would like to see $200,000 in reserve for 
emergencies.  Mayor Burrows asked for consensus to leave section E, Sewer Fees, at the $7.75 
rate instead of increasing them to $8.50.  Consensus was not reached. 

 
Councilor Haws discussed the water fees in the commercial section and stated he doesn’t understand 
why there are two different commercial sections.  Mr. Hansen replied that one is a high use fee and 
the other is a moderate use fee with tiered rates.  Councilor Haws noted that the rates for the high 
use, if you are using the moderate use schedule, are the same rate.  Mr. Hansen stated that the 
terminology may have been reversed when the fee schedule was initially adopted.  Councilor Haws 
asked how the high and moderate usage is determined.  Mr. Moulding replied that it is based on their 
consumption.  Mr. Hansen stated that they could eliminate number 2 and call it Commercial Meter 
with a breakpoint of 40,000.  Councilor Haws agreed and suggests looking at this to see if there are 
high use people in category 2, who by doing that, would be penalizing.  He suggested not changing 
anything tonight in the commercial water sections 2 and 3 and bringing it back.   

 
Councilor Haws inquired how the non-resident rate at the Community Center is going to be 
implemented.  Lynn Fortie replied that issue has been discussed but the details haven’t been worked 
out.  He explained that they are looking into issuing ID cards.  Councilor Haws stated that if we 
don’t know how to implement it, he doesn’t see that making the change will make any difference.  
He suggested leaving it as it is and when they are ready to implement it, bring this portion back and 
they will make the change.  Lynn Fortie asked the Council if they were supportive of these changes.  
Councilor Haws stated that the non-resident fee seems high and feels that the rates won’t bring in a 
ton of revenue.  He suspects that a lot of non-residents who currently use the facility may go 
somewhere else, once the fee is raised.  Mayor Burrows stated that he thinks the non-resident daily 
fee should be $2.00 instead of $2.50.  Mr. Hansen stated that they will be happy to bring back an 
implementation plan but needs to know if they support the non-resident fees.  Councilor Haws asked 
if they were confident that the implementation costs would not be a big deal.  Mr. Fortie replied that 
they already have some of the software to make the ID cards as they currently issue badges for 
coaches.  Councilor Haws reported that he is more comfortable charging a $2.00 fee for non-
residents.  He suggested coming up with a consistent formula and bringing it back to the Council.  
Mayor Burrows asked for consensus to support a non-resident fee increase for the Community 
Center.  Consensus was reached.  Councilor Gibby asked if that included leaving the fees for 
Section A and B unaltered.  Councilor Haws stated that would be leaving the fees in the Community 
Center Section C 1-4 alone and changing the fees for Sections A and B.   



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 6 June 19, 2007 

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve Resolution 2007-24 amending the Consolidated Fee 

Schedule in the Riverdale Municipal Ordinance Code Title 1, Chapter12, with the 
exception of fees for the Community Center that will be unaltered and bring back cat 
license fees and Commercial Water at a future date.  Councilor Haws seconded the 
motion. 

 
Call the Question  
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor Jenkins, Yes; Councilor 
Griffiths, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

4. a. Consideration of adjournment into Closed Executive Session for the purpose of discussion 
of the character, professional competence, or physical or mental health of an individual as 
per Utah Code 42-4-205(1)(a). 
Councilor Haws proposed going ahead and discussing the budget and if need be, they could then 
hold the Closed Executive Session.  Mr. Hansen reported that he has talked with Mr. Brooks and 
feels that if consideration of budget amendment has something to do with this and is a personnel 
related item, they would like the opportunity to discuss that in closed session before amending 
the budget.   

 
Motion: Councilor Haws moved to adjourn into Closed Executive Session.  Councilor Gibby 

seconded the motion. 
 

Call the Question  
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor Jenkins, Yes; Councilor Griffiths, Yes; 
Councilor Gibby, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
The meeting recessed into the Closed Executive Session at 7:32 p.m. 
The meeting reconvened at 8:13 p.m. 
 
 b. Consideration of action. 

Mayor Burrows stated that there is no need for a consideration of action.  Councilor Haws stated 
that he is not in full support of the Community Development budget. 

 
5. Consideration of Resolution 2007-25 adopting the FY 2008 amendments log to the tentative 

budget. 
Lynn Fortie reported that an increase in wages for the Judge and the related accounts that the wage 
increase effects have been added to the amendments log.  Councilor Haws reported that he is 
proposing to remove all franchise taxes from the tentative budget.  He stated that he has thought 
about this long and hard, and listened to the arguments for and against this tax.  He explained that 
he finally came down on Councilor Peterson’s side and is in favor of doing away with all of the 
franchise fees. Councilor Jenkins reported that as she discussed in the town meeting, she feels that 
franchise fees are a back-door tax and also agrees with Councilor Peterson and Councilor Haws to 
eliminate the franchise fees.  Councilor Gibby stated that he is not in favor of any tax increase but 
realizes that they need to get money from somewhere is not in favor of removing them.  Mayor 
Burrows asked for consensus to delete item 6, Franchise Fees, from the amendments log and 
change the amount of $54,250 to zero.  The vote was 2 in favor and 2 opposed to remove the 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 7 June 19, 2007 

franchise fees.  Mayor Burrows voted in favor of deleting item 6 from the amendments log to 
break the tie.  Consensus was reached. 

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve Resolution 2007-25 adopting the Fiscal Year 2008 

amendments log to the tentative budget for the City of Riverdale for Fiscal year 2008 
(July 1, 2007 – June 30, 2008).  Councilor Haws seconded the motion.  Polled unanimous 

 
Call the Question  
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Jenkins, Yes; Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor 
Haws, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

6. Consideration of Resolution 2007-26 providing for adoption of the FY 2008 final budget as 
amended for all funds. 
 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve Resolution 2007-26 adopting a budget for the City of 

Riverdale for Fiscal Year 2008 (July 1, 2007 – June 30, 2008) as amended by the 
amendments log.  Councilor Haws seconded the motion. 

 
Call the Question  
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor 
Jenkins, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

7. a. Consideration of Resolution 2007-27 adopting the Certified Tax Rate. 
Lynn Fortie reported that the County has not sent out the Certified Tax Rate numbers and that they 
are hoping to have them ready by the end of June.  He noted that they will be adopting the Tax Rate 
of .001470 tonight and that once the rate is adopted, a notice will need to be sent to the County to 
begin the public process.  Mr. Hansen stated that Resolution 2007-27 stipulates the .001470 rate and 
noted that it would be subject to the Truth in Taxation hearings.  He explained that by adopting this 
Resolution, they are authorizing staff to inform Weber County that Riverdale’s proposed tax rate 
will go from the 2006 tax year rate of .001131 to .001470, subject to the hearings.  He stated that 
does not mean it is final at this stage, as once you hold the Truth in Taxation hearings it can be 
changed, but that this is the mechanism to being that process.  Councilor Haws inquired when that 
hearing would be held.  Mr. Fortie replied that the hearing cannot be held any sooner than 10 days 
after the tax evaluation notices are sent by the County and that a quarter page ad must run in the 
newspaper twice, two weeks prior to the hearing.  Mr. Fortie reported that the State will help us 
through this process and he anticipates the hearing will be held sometime in August.   

 
Motion: Councilor Haws moved to approve Resolution 2007-27 adopting a Certified Tax Rate.  

Councilor Gibby seconded the motion.  
 
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor 
Jenkins, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
b. Consideration of setting a Truth in Taxation hearing. 
Mayor Burrows stated that this hearing cannot be set tonight as they will have to wait to find out 
when the County plans to send out their tax valuation notices.   
 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 8 June 19, 2007 

8. Consideration of Ordinance 685 setting the salaries for the Mayor and Councilmembers, and 
the Justice Court Judge. 
Lynn Fortie reported that this ordinance includes the salaries and expense rates for the Mayor and 
Councilmembers as well as the new wage for the judge.  Councilor Jenkins requested that her pay 
remain at the per meeting amount that was noted two years ago and stated that she is refusing to 
take the pay increase.  Councilor Haws proposed removing the increases that are specified for the 
Mayor and City Council in Title 1, Chapter 7, Section 1(A) and (B) and leaving Sections 2 and 3 
intact.   

 
Motion: Councilor Haws moved to delete the section regarding the Mayor and Council from the 

changes made in Ordinance 685, which would leave the salaries the same for this year as 
last year.  Councilor Jenkins seconded the motion.   

 
Councilor Griffith inquired if these raises reflect a cost of living increase, based on what other cities 
and counties are receiving.  Mr. Hansen replied that the proposed increase does increase the average 
salary schedule for all employees in the City.  Councilor Jenkins stated that the increases to staff are 
because of a greater cooperative effort between departments and the fact that they are doing more 
with less and she feels their increases are applicable.  Councilor Haws stated that the increases are 
roughly 6% and last year inflation was 2.6% and doesn’t think that they merit any more than that. 

 
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Gibby, No; Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor Jenkins, Yes; Councilor 
Griffiths, No.  Mayor Burrows voted No to break the tie.  The motion failed.   

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve Ordinance 685 amending Title 1, Chapter 7, Section 

2(A) and (B) setting salaries for the Mayor and City Councilmembers; and amending 
Title 1, Chapter 7(F), Section 6 by setting a salary for the Justice Court Judge.  Councilor 
Griffiths seconded the motion. 

 
Councilor Haws reported that Exhibit A reflects the 2006 and 2007 numbers, but not 2008.  Mr. 
Hansen stated that Exhibit A will be updated to reflect the 2008 figures.   

 
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor Jenkins, Yes; Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor 
Gibby, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

9. Consideration of Resolution 2007-28 adopting a special June 30, 2007 Employee Incentive. 
Larry Hansen reported that in the wake of SB-35, Riverdale City employees have pulled together 
and done more with less.  He stated that these collective efforts have been nurtured through morale 
and good will at all levels and that the continuation of such collective efforts will service the City’s 
best interests in meeting the challenges of SB-35.  He explained that the need exists to more 
equitably recognize and reward the employees collective efforts in contributing to the FY07 surplus 
and is asking that the City Council authorize and adopt Resolution 2007-28 to provide a one time 
2% incentive payment or approximately 60,777 or 8.3% of the projected general fund surplus to be 
paid on June 30, 2007 to the employees.  Mayor Burrows reported that he is wholeheartedly behind 
this proposal and is extremely proud of these employees and feels that this is a great way to extend 
the employees a little bit of thanks and gratitude.  Councilor Gibby stated that he looks at this as 
just compensation for work above and beyond the call of duty and hopes they can do something like 
this every year, if there is a similar result.  Councilor Jenkins stated that the 30% proposed tax 
increase will account for $120,000 of the increased revenue to the City and truly believes that we 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 9 June 19, 2007 

have wonderful employees that go above and beyond; but as Councilmember Haws reported, the 
rate of inflation was 2.6% and we also fund the employee’s retirement at a higher rate and take care 
of them well.  She stated that they have increased the employees benefit program by 6% and their 
raises are 6%.  She reported that this would give the employees a 14% increase but feels that the 
question is if they can spend ½ of a 30% tax increase, or do they put that money aside for the 
general fund.  Councilor Jenkins stated that she cannot support spending ½ of a 30% tax increase 
this way.  Councilor Haws reported that it is his understanding that half of the surplus came about 
through increased revenues and the other half from reduced expenditures.  He thanked the 
employees for the things they have done to generate the surplus but questions whether the City has 
been a little too frugal in trying to save money.  He stated that since half of the surplus came from 
reduction in expenditures, he is willing to support a 1% bonus but not a 2%.  Larry Hansen stated 
that he takes exception to the comment that staff is receiving a 14% increase this year.  He noted 
that because the salary schedule is a market driven system, some of the employees are rewarded 
based on their job and how it fared in the market.  This means that some employees are receiving 
very little, if any increase, and the average increase is 6%.  Mr. Hansen stated that the employees 
are doing more with less, as over the last 18 months, the City is down 6 FTE’s from what has been 
authorized.  He reported that the employees have also taken a reduction in their benefits as their 
health insurance coverage has changed with increased deductibles and co-pays.  He noted that their 
retirement plan was also reduced this year, as historically, the City has funded the defined benefit 
pension program and also contributed to a 457 or 401k plan.  He explained that this year the defined 
benefit pension will be funded by the City, but the City will only pay into the 457 or 401K plans if 
the employees contribute.  The employee contribution will be matched by the City, up to the 
threshold.  He further explained that the Travel and Training policy has been changed and they have 
reduced the Education Assistance funds that the employees can receive.  Mr. Hansen stated that 
with regard to spending the tax increase, he would argue that there were items that this staff 
cooperatively, across all department lines, contributed materially to what will be over $700,000 
surplus this year as opposed to the anticipated $17,000 surplus.   

 
Councilor Griffiths reported that the City was lauded at the recent Town Meeting for having a 
surplus because the employees did everything they could to not spend, if they didn’t have to.  He 
explained that he came from a governmental organization that had the attitude of spend it or get less 
next year.  He feels that we are sending the right message and firmly supports the 2% employee 
incentive.   

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve Resolution 2007-28 adopting a one-time employee 

incentive consideration for fiscal year 2006-2007.  Councilor Griffiths seconded the 
motion. 

 
Councilor Haws stated that he keeps hearing the argument about the reduction in staff and thinks 
that we had plenty of money all this time, and with all sales tax money the City kept hiring people 
that we didn’t necessarily need.  He feels that now there is a fiscal crunch, that people are stepping 
up and having to take on more responsibility and he thinks they should have been taking on that to 
begin with.   

 
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Haws, No; Councilor 
Jenkins, No.  Mayor Burrows voted Yes to break the tie.  The motion passed.   
 

10. Consideration of Ordinance 684 creating a two lot subdivision. 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 10 June 19, 2007 

Randy Daily reported that this proposal came before the Planning Commission and received a 
favorable recommendation to subdivide one lot into two.  

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve Ordinance 684 creating a two lot subdivision located 

at approximately 1213 West Ritter Drive in the City of Riverdale, providing for 
severability and an effective date.  Councilor Haws seconded the motion. 

 
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor Jenkins, Yes; Councilor 
Griffiths, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
11. Consideration of Resolution 2007-29 amending the Developer’s Agreement with Unity 

Enterprises, LLC. 
Randy Daily reported that Unity sent a letter to Mr. Hansen expressing their desire to amend the 
Developer’s Agreement and remove the language requiring a 15 year time period for development 
of their property as they felt it was too binding and would make partnering with other individuals 
more desirable.  Councilor Jenkins stated that she sees this agreement as a fluid document and if 
they start development and are showing promise of moving forward, she feels that the agreement 
could be modified and that the 15 years was not carved in stone.  She asked if they could insert 
language that if Unity is moving ahead and the 15 year time limit is near, the contract could be 
looked at.  Steve Brooks reported that Unity doesn’t want a date in there period.  He stated that we 
inserted language that once this agreement is signed, the City will receive the gifted 25 acres.  He 
explained that we don’t look at the 15 years as a big issue, in favor of getting the land in our name.  
Larry Hansen stated that we have a device in the Developer’s Agreement to provide for beneficial 
interests in the City that outweigh the significance of time performance.  He reported that the 
manner of performance is more critical and by amending this agreement to allow them the time they 
need, in exchange for a commitment to deliver the acreage to us and control the design related 
issues, makes sense.  Councilor Jenkins discussed section 4.2 of the agreement and feels that while 
the City does get the land by signing the agreement, it seems to be bound by Unity’s first phase and 
is worried about moving forward on the trail.  Mr. Brooks reported that the only changes that are 
being proposed are in sections 4.1 and 9.2, and that the rest of the document is unchanged.  Mr. 
Daily stated that the alignment on the trail hinges on where the bridge crosses the river.  He noted 
that the bridge is designed but that it could be up to two years before it is started.  Councilor Haws 
stated that if Unity thinks they will not being able to do the development in 15 years, then it throws 
up a red flag that they may not be doing a bridge in two years.  Mr. Daily replied that Unity feels 
that they have to build the bridge prior to marketing the property.  Councilor Haws expressed 
concern that if urgency is removed for them to market and develop, then perhaps the ability to build 
the trail is limited.  Mr. Daily stated that we will get the land and based on us complying with the 
Army Corps of Engineers, we will put the trail in.  Councilor Haws stated that Unity can change 
where the trail goes and he would like to see if we would have to make modifications to the trail 
improvements and if so, that Unity pays for fixing the trail.  Mr. Brooks stated that he looks at that 
as inherent, as we own the land at that point.   

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve Resolution 2007-29 amending a previous 

Developer’s Agreement between Riverdale City and Unity Enterprises, LLC.  Councilor 
Griffiths seconded the motion. 

 
Councilor Jenkins stated that when this item was brought to them 90 days ago, there was an element 
of their previous motion that the City Council wanted to have certain things in line before giving 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 11 June 19, 2007 

their approval.  She stated that one of those things was the alignment of the bridge, but they were 
told that we don’t want to hang them up but move them forward.  She stated that she didn’t vote for 
it.  Councilor Jenkins stated that they now we find out that they haven’t started this because of the 
15 year time limit.  She is requesting that language be inserted that makes the City whole if they 
decide to realign the trail once we put it in.  She reported that she is not in favor of approving this if 
we don’t have that assurance.  Councilor Haws reported that he thought one reason for the 15 year 
time frame was if they don’t develop it, it will revert back to the original zone.  Randy Daily replied 
that isn’t the case, as that would be a taking.  Councilor Gibby asked for a vote on the motion.  
Councilor Haws stated that Unity has gone to extreme lengths to protect themselves and he thinks it 
is only proper to protect us.  He proposed going back to them and suggesting that the language in 
4.2 be modified to include, that if the trail is built before their improvements, any damage and 
relocation of the trail will be paid by them.  Mayor Burrows stated that once the property is 
conveyed to the City, they would have to make us whole.   

. 
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Haws, No; Councilor Jenkins, No; Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor 
Gibby, Yes.  Mayor Burrows voted Yes to break the tie.  The motion passed.   
 

12. Consideration of Resolution 2007-30 adopting an adjustment to the Robinson Waste contract. 
Lynn Moulding reported that Steve Robinson is requesting an adjustment and contract renewal to 
the current Waste contract.  He stated that Mr. Robinson originally requested an additional twenty-
six cents per can but we requested that we leave the 2nd can rate the same and only increase the first 
can rate by thirty-one cents, to which Mr. Robinson agreed.  Councilor Haws noted that the last line 
in the letter from Mr. Robinson requesting the rate adjustment, discusses a fuel surcharge and 
wondered what the status of that was.  Steve Robinson reported that he did propose a fuel surcharge 
but feels that it is not a critical issue if the contract is revisited each year.  Mr. Hansen stated that 
the fuel surcharge is not included in this contract.   

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve Resolution 2007-30 executing an amended agreement 

with Robinson Waste Services for solid waste collection within Riverdale City.  
Councilor Haws seconded the motion.   

 
Councilor Haws noted that the agreement has a section addressing customer complaints and 
requested that the City be notified of any complaints and how they were resolved.  Mr. Robinson  
stated that they don’t keep a formal complaint log, but that they could do that.   

 
Roll Call Vote: Councilor Haws, Yes; Councilor Jenkins, Yes; Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor 
Gibby, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously.   

 
13. Consideration of Ordinance 686 amending Title 1-8-3 Election Filing Fee. 

Steve Brooks reported that this ordinance is to clarify that a candidate for elected office can either 
pay a $25 filing fee or submit signatures from 50 registered voters to run for office.  He noted that 
the previous language didn’t make it clear that it was one or the other and not both. 

 
Motion: Councilor Haws moved to approve Ordinance 686 amending Riverdale Municipal 

Ordinance Code (2001), Title 1, Chapter 8, Section 3, providing for clarification and 
consistency in the candidate filing fee policy of Riverdale City.  Councilor Jenkins 
seconded the motion. 

 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 12 June 19, 2007 

Roll Call Vote: Councilor Jenkins, Yes; Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor 
Haws, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 

14. a. Consideration of adjournment into Closed Executive Session for the purpose of strategy 
sessions to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation pursuant to Utah Code 52-4-
205(1)(c). 

 b. Consideration of action regarding pending or reasonably imminent litigation. 
Mayor Burrows stated that the Closed Executive Session was not needed. 
 

H. Discretionary Items 
Councilor Haws reported that he spoke with a former employee of the City and would like to propose 
implementing exit interviews for terminating employees so that we can follow up on any problems that 
might come up through that kind of situation.  Larry Hansen stated that is not a proposal to have Council 
act on and has asked Stacey Comeau to draft an outline of an exit interview for administrative review 
and begin administering that through Human Resources.  Councilor Haws stated that he would like to 
see it as part of the policy and procedures handbook.  Councilor Jenkins inquired if the City 
Councilmembers would be privy to the criteria to be established for the exit interview.  Mr. Hansen 
replied that he will look into establishing a policy to hold an exit interview but that it doesn’t fall under 
the purview of the Council at this stage.   
 
I. Adjournment 
With no further business to come before the Council at this time, Councilor Gibby moved to adjourn the 
meeting.  Councilor Jenkins seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  The meeting 
adjourned at approximately 9:48 p.m. 
 
Attest:       Approved:    July 17, 2007 
 
 
_____________________________                          _________________________________ 
Marilyn Hansen, City Recorder    Bruce Burrows, Mayor  

 


	B.  Pledge of Allegiance
	C. Moment of Silence
	D. Open Communications
	E. Presentations and Reports  

